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Dear Treasurer,

Corporations Amendment (Corporate Insolvency Reforms) Regulations 2020 [F2020L01654]

The Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation (the committee) assasses
all disallowable legislative instruments against scrutiny principles outlined in Senate standing
order 23. The committee has identified scrutiny concerns in relation to the above instrument, and
the committee seeks your advice in relation to these matters.

Exemptions from and modification to primary legislation
Parliamentary oversight

Senate standing order 23(3)(j) requires the committee to consider whether an instrument contains
matters more appropriate for parliamentary enactment (that is, matters that should be enacted
via primary rather than delegated legislation). This may include instruments which provide
continuing exemptions to primary legislation. In addition, Senate standing order 23(3)(k) requires
the committee to scrutinise each legislative instrument as to whether it complies with any ground
relating to the technical scrutiny of delegated legislation. This includes whether an instrument
limits parliamentary oversight.

The instrument amends the Corporations Regulations 2001 and the Corporations (-ees)
Regulations 2001 to enable the debt restructuring and simplified liquidation regimes establ shed
by the Corporations Amendment (Corporate Insolvency Reforms) Act 2020.

Section 5.5.04 and subsection 5.5.08(4) modify the operation of the Corporations Act 2001 (the
Corporations Act). Section 5.5.04 provides for circumstances in which a transaction in a simplified
liquidation process is not voidable under subsection 588FE(2) of the Corporations Act. Subsection
5.5.08(4) modifies the operation of paragraph 533(1)(d) of the Corporations Act when it appears
to a liquidator during the simplified liquidation process that one or more circumstancsas in
paragraphs 533(1)(a), (b) or (c) existed.

The committee has long been concerned with provisions in delegated legislation which mod fy or
exempt persons from the operation of primary legislation, particularly where those modifications
appear to substantially depart from the original provision. The committee therefore expects the
explanatory statement to any modification instrument to comprehensively justify the nature and



scope of the relevant modifications. In this regard, the committee notes that the explanatory
statement does not explain why it was considered necessary and appropriate to address this
matter in delegated legislation, rather than primary legislation.

In addition, it is unclear from the instrument and the explanatory statement whether any time
limits apply to the modifications made to the Corporations Act by these provisions. The
committee's longstanding view is that provisions which modify or exempt persons or entities from
the operation of primary legislation should cease to operate no more than three years after they
commence. This is to ensure a minimum degree of regular parliamentary oversight. The
committee's views in this regard are set out in its final report of its inquiry into the exemption of
delegated legislation from parliamentary oversight.!

Further, as per the committee's guidelines, the committee considers that the explanatory
statement should indicate whether there is any intention to conduct a review of the relevant
provisions to determine if they remain necessary and appropriate, including whether it is
appropriate to include the provisions in delegated legislation.

The committee therefore requests your advice as to:

. why it is considered necessary and appropriate to use delegated legislation, rather than
primary legislation to modify the operation of the Corporations Act 2001;

o how long the measures in section 5.5.04 and subsection 5.5.08(4) are intended to
remain in force, and, if they are intended to remain in force for longer than three years,
whether the instrument can be amended to provide that they cease within three years
of commencement; and

B whether there is any intention to conduct a review of the relevant provisions to
determine if they remain necessary and appropriate, including whether it is appropriate
to include the provisions in delegated legislation.

Clarity of drafting

Senate standing order 23(3)(e) requires the committee to scrutinise each instrument as to
whether its drafting is defective or unclear.

Subsection 5.3B.25(3) provides that a person commits an offence if they give, or agree or offer to
give, to an affected creditor any valuable consideration with the intention of secu ring the affected
creditor’s acceptance or non-acceptance of the restructuring plan. Subsection 5.3B.25(4) provides
that the offence in subsection 5.3B.25(3) is an offence of strict liability.

Under general principles of criminal law, fault is required to be proved before a person cen bhe
found guilty of a criminal offence (ensuring that criminal liability is imposed only on persons who
are sufficiently aware of what they are doing and the consequences it may have). The application
of strict liability removes the requirement for the prosecution to prove the defendant's farlt. In
such cases, an offence will be made out if it can be proven that the defendant engaged in certain
conduct, without the prosecution having to prove that the defendant intended this, or was
reckless or negligent.

Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation, Final report: Exemption of
delegated legislation from parlia mentary oversight, March 2021
<https://www.aph.gov.au/Parliamentary Business/Committees/Senate/Scrutiny of Delegated
Legislation/Exemptfromoversight/Final report>.




Noting that the purpose of strict liability is to remove the requirement for the prosecution to
prove the defendant's fault, the committee requests your advice as to how strict liability can
apply to this offence in circumstances where paragraph 5.3B.25(3)(b) appears to explicitly apply
the fault element of intention to the offence.

The committee's expectation is to receive a response in time for it to consider and report on the
instrument while it is still subject to disallowance. If the committee has not concluded its
consideration of an instrument before the expiry of the 15th sitting day after the instrument has
been tabled in the Senate, the committee may give notice of a motion to disallow the instrunent
as a precautionary measure to allow additional time for the committee to consider information
received.

Noting this, and to facilitate the committee's consideration of the matters above, the comm ittee
would appreciate your response by 1 April 2021.

Finally, please note that, in the interests of transparency, this correspondence and your resgonse
will be published on the committee's website.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the committee's secretariat on
(02) 6277 3066, or by email to sdlc.sen@aph.gov.au.

Thank you for your assistance with this matter.

Yours sincerely,

Senator the Hon Concetta Fierravanti-Wells
Chair
Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation



THE HON JOSH FRYDENBERG MP
TREASURER

Ref: MS21-000656

Senator the Hon Concetta Fierravanti-Wells

Chair
Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation

Parliament House
CANBERRA ACT 2600

Dear Senator Fierravanti-Wells

Thank you for your letter on behalf of the Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated
Legislation (the Committee) regarding the Corporations Amendment (Corporate Insolvency Reforms)
Regulations 2020.

In that letter, the Committee requested my advice about:

. why it is considered necessary and appropriate to use delegated legislation, rather than primary
legislation, to modify the operation of the Corporations Act 2001,

. how long the relevant provisions are intended to remain in force, and if they are intended to
remain in force for longer than three years, whether the instrument can be amended to provide
that they cease within three years of commencement;

. whether there is any intention to conduct a review of the relevant provisions to determine if
they remain necessary and appropriate; and

. the clarity of the drafting of an offence provision.

Given the number of matters to be covered, 1 have set my response in the Annexure to this letter.

I trust this information will be of assistance to the Committee.

Yours sincerely

THE HON JOSH FRYDENBERG MP
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Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 Australia
Telephone: 61 2 6277 7340 | Facsimile: 61 2 6273 3420
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13 May 2021

The Hon Josh Frydenberg MP
Treasurer
Parliament House

CANBERRA ACT 2600
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Corporations Amendment (Corporate Insolvency Reforms) Regulations 2020 [F2020L01654]

Thank you for your response of 9 April 2021 to the Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of
Delegated Legislation in relation to the above instrument.

The committee considered your response at its private meeting on 12 May 2021.

The committee welcomes your undertaking to remove subregulation 5.3B.25(4) which provides that
the offence in subregulation 5.3B.25(3) is a strict liability offence. This undertaking has been listed
in Appendix C of Delegated Legislation Monitor 7 of 2021.

In addition, on the basis of your ongoing, good faith engagement with the committee in relation to
Treasury portfolio instruments which modify or exempt persons or entities from the operation of
primary legislation, the committee has resolved to conclude its examination of the instrument as
part of its regular scrutiny process.

However, as you are aware, the committee continues to have significant systemic scrutiny concerns
relating to instruments which modify the operation of primary legislation, and the operation of
these instruments for a ten year period. The committee will therefore consider this instrument as
part of this ongoing engagement. In light of these ongoing discussions, the committee has resolved
to withdraw the notice of motion to disallow the instrument.

While the committee has resolved to withdraw the disallowance notice in place on this instrument,
| advise that the committee will give disallowance notices on similar Treasury portfolio instruments
which raise these concerns in the future if the committee's systemic scrutiny concerns are not
satisfactorily resolved through the current ongoing discussions.

In the interests of transparency, | note that this correspondence will be published on the
committee's website and recorded in the Delegated Legislation Monitor.



If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the committee's secretariat on (02) 6277
3066, or by email to sdic.sen@aph.gov.au.

Thank you for your assistance with this matter.

Yours sincerely,

Senator the Hon Concetta Fierravanti-Wells
Chair
Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation





